IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT -
FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF INDIANA

EVANSVILLE DIVISION
) ,
Plaintiff, ) ety
| ) 0/9
V. ) Case No. 3:07mj0017 /6)
) 7/
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA; ) R TR AT - I
)
Defendant. )

MOTION FOR RETURN OF PROPERTY UNDER
FEDERAL RULES OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE 41(g)

COMES NOW Bernard von NotHaus (hereinafter, “Plaintiff”), and for his - ... ¢
Complaint states as follows:

General Jurisdiction and Standing

1. This Hdnorable Couﬁ has jurisdiction and standing over this matter under
Rule 41 of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure. Plaintiff respectfully moves this

Honorable Court, pursuant to Rule 41(g), Fed. R. Crim. P., to return his property seized -

from the premises at the business located at 225 N. Stockwell Road, Evansville, Indiana

47715, pursuant to a search warrant issued in the Southern District of Indiana by the
Honorable Richard L. Young and dated November 8, 2007. A copy of the search warrant

is attached hereto as Exhibit A and is incorporated by refe__‘r'enc'e as though ﬁ,llly.setvout

herein.

2. Relief is sought pursuant to Rule 41(g) of the Federal Rules of Criminal

Procedure, and pursﬁant to the First, Fourth, and Fourteenth Amendments to the United - -

States Constitution, and pursuant to Rule 65,’ Fédéral Rules of Civil Procedure; and under .~ - cip

certain statutes for equitable and other relief.




FERER R Thrs Court has Jurlsdlctron over Plaintiff’s claims arrsmg under the S e o

Const1tut1on and laws of the Umted States, pursuant t0 28 U.S.C. § 1331 for those

L claiming deprivation of civil rights under 28 US.C. § 1343,.for return of ptoperty under: - .+«

Rule 41(g) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedute, and for injunctive reliefunder:- - -
Rule 65 of the Federal Rules.of Civil Procedure.

“r ‘Parties

4'. Plaintiff is now an individual and resident of the State of Hawaii. Atthe v o .

' t1me the search warrant at 1ssue was s1gned on November g, 2007 Pla1nt1ff was a: res1dent~ :
; .of the State of Indlana o | . ;
| | 5 | Defendant Umted States 1ncludes the Department of Homeland Secunty, e |
Department of the Treasury, Federal Bureau of Invest1gat1ons, U.S. Secret Service, and
U.S. Mint and their agents who conducted the search and seizure pursuant to the w,arrant
attached hereto as Exhibit A.

Equltable Jurisdiction for the Return of Property

6. The search of the premises was conducted pursuant to a search warrant as
described above' Durlng the search the agents se1zed numerous items from the prermses.;,
A copy of the 1nventory of the 1tems se1zed as prepared by the federal agents whom
conducted the search is attached hereto as Exhlblt B. However, Exhibit B is not an f R
exhaustive 11st of the items serzed. |

7. Some of the 1tems that were serzed from the premises and mcluded on
Exlnb1t B are the subJ ect of a C1V11 Forfelture actlon in the United States D1stnct Court

for the Western D1str1ct of North Carohna Case No 1 08CV230 (heremafter “the C1v11

Forfelture act1on”). A copy of the Complamt for the Civil Forferture action is attached-




- other property:on Exhibit'B-that is-not the subject.of the Civil Forfeiture action. "This- - . wiocpmdt fnd

| remedy at law. Plaintiff contends and believes that he has been irreparably harmed by the

- return of Plaintiff’s property. - Plaintiff asks this Court to return all of the documents and .~ ~ -

~.hereto.as Exhibit.C." Exhibit C describes the items seized from the premises.and:included. . : " .iwticie 1 g

:-on'Exhibit B, which are the subject of the Civil Forfeiture action. These items generallyw, <o o e i

{

+- :include precious metals in the form of medalliéns: s it : O e RN T ORIt

8. - Theitems included-on Exhibit B;ithat are subject to the Civil Forfeiture .

" action in the Western District of North Carolina, are not the property that is-sought:to-bew.irm: v on o

returned via this Motion under Rule 41(g). Instead, this Motion seeks the return of the .* . " e iy Fe

o 'othgr property, that is not the subject of the Civil Forfeiture action, generallyincludes--- -

paper documents and computers.

9.+ . Plaintiff has standing t'éf‘bring ﬂ_‘li'si'claim on behalf of himself as thela LU SETORE TR

rightful owner of property that was seized and that is not the subject of the Civil
Forfeiture action.
10.  This Court has jurisdiction to order the return of the documents and items

seized upon a showing of (1) irreparable injury, and (2) that Plaintiff otherwise lacks a -

actions of the United States. The irreparable harm includes, but is not limited to,, derﬁal -
.of" Plaintiffé FOUI't];l Ainéndment’ﬁghts to protection from search and seizure based oﬁ a‘nv -
;inyalid warrant; Plaintiff’s Fourteenth Amendment rights to due process, i,ntgrfer’enc,ev -
w1th private contracté, and interference with business operation. The denial :b’f Plaintiff’s .- . -
_fdénstitutional rights is continuing and cannot be remedied unless this Cou;'t:’!()rdersv the -

items seized from him that are not included in the Civil Forfeiture action. In:the . -




. alternative;.all.such documents.and.items should be.returned to the Plainitiff with the: . oinivieis o 5
. United-States. preservinig:a copy-or.sample for future:use, if any..: .~ . niies s e v
aon LA Pldintiff is the in‘dividual that is:the target of the criminal investigation,: - MR T i

- whichis referenced.in the warrant, Exhibit A+ .. 0 T P P PP

~.212: » - Neither: Plaintiff nor the entities:that are the targets of the criminal - 7. .~ - -

- investigation have been indicted for the crimes alleged in the warrant. “Anomalous’ i -« s 17 2l
jﬁlsisdicti'on”i gives federal district courts power:to order.suppression or returm. ofi: - 0 R TINIENESRETY
- unlawfully seized property ‘even though no indictment has been returned and thusno - -+ v 0

© -criminal prosecution is yet in existence. Jurisdiction to order suppression orreturn prior -« -

- to indictment exists-not by virtue of any statute but rather is derived from the.inherent-» . . o wef iy

authority of the Court over:those who are its officers. U.S.C.A. Const. Aménd, 4. |
13.  The search and seizure in this case was unlawful and illegal because,
- among other reasons, the items were seized without probable cause, items were not .
described in the search warrant which was itself dverly broad, no search warrant was
- otherwise obtained as required by law, and the éfﬁd‘avit that was used to support and
obtain the warrant was intentionally deceptive and misleading, as described herein.
14.  Evenif thé search and seizure were lawful and legal, the United Stétes no

Tlonger has a need to use.the property that was:seized as evidence, and such property. = .

- -should be returned to.Plaintiff, who is its rightful'owner. The United States has the: « - .. oo e

“ability to photocopy items, retain only a sampl‘_e';of the property, or to condition the teturn. . -

-of property on the United States’ access to'the property at a future time. -




~oFaetsand Analysis oo o e e i s s e g
- 415,00 Liberty Services, a sole proprietorship f/k/a NORFED, Inc:, a dissolved .. i wawup foovols, w

“iicorporation, has a place:of business in the:State of: Indiana. = s .vramr e st i s

:16.:" - Plaintiff Bernard von NotHaus was also-an officer and the-sole owner:of - ;oo ov 5% iy 0 s

«Liberty:Services and NORFED; Inc:+ 1:. 7 e

FPREES

:17. +* TheLiberty Dollar and Hawaii Dalajiwhich are referenced:in.the warrant, = ... 5, i o

i ExhibitA; are private voluntary barter currencies. ..

- 18.- - -On'November 14, 2007, federal agents including, but not limited to, - -

- criminal-investigation. agents of the FBI, Secret Service agents, and agents-of the U.S. -z« v omse 0

o ‘Mint exécuted a federal ise-arch watrant on thei.premiées::f Plaintiff has" been -pfovided with <0 ens e b

- a copy of tﬁe warrant but has not been provided with the affidavit, WMch supported the . ..
application of the United States for the warrant, Exhibit A, in Indiana.
19. Pl‘aintiffs seek the immediate disclosure of the affidavit for warrant.
Plaintiffs have obtained a copy of the affidavit used in a companion proceeding in the ..
- District of North Carolina, which is attabhed as Exhibit D. Pursuant to the Fourth
. Amendment, Plaintiffs are entitled to receive a copy of the affidavit in support of the -
- warrants after a search has been conducted and prior to any indictment. |
+20.  * In 2006, the U.S. Mint posted.a warning regarding the Liberty Dollar - - -
... :medallions on-its'Wéb'site..(ht’cp://www’.usmint;gov/consumer/index.cﬁn?action=hotitems) o
under the designatign' “Consumer Awareness — Hot Items” The warning, states, inter

“alia, that: .




The United States Minit and the United States Departmentof ‘Justice have, .
... Teceived, inquiries -regarding the legality. of these so-called ."Liberty Dollar
medallions. The United States Mmt urges consumers who are cons1der1ng the

A Mlnt bulhon Goins and they are not legal tender. These medallions are pr1vatelyf o
produced products and are not backed. by, nor affiliated in any way with, the - - & -

'United States Government. Moreover prosecutors with the Department of Justlce‘f ST DR

have determined that the us determmed that the use of these old and sﬂver NORFED f'leert Dollar":ﬁ;

* N

~'_'Zv-_',’.."'.'-"i'-: cai b e i s s oo

Therefore, NORFED’s "Liberty Dollar" medallions are specifically intended to Be;- R RS
- used as current money in order to limit reliance on, and to compete with the -
‘ mrculatmg coinage of the United States. Consequently, prosecutors with the .. - ..

United States Department of Justice have concluded that the use of NORFED S

"'beerty Dollar" medallions violates 18 U. S C. §486. ' B

21. . On March 20, 2007, Plaitltiff filed a Complaint in the United States -
District Court for the Southern District of Indiana, Evansville Division, Civil Action
3:07-CV-038-RLY-WGH (hereinafter "civil action"). The Complaint seeks a declaratory
j'udgment action against the United States of Ame_fi.ca for improperly providing noti,ce_on’ :
_ the website of the U.S. Mint that the actions and activities of Plaintiff and NORFED. . .
constitute a Violattion of law. |

22. . At the time of the execution of the‘search warrant in this case, the civil
- case was pending before the United States Dlstnct Court of the Southem District of -

Indiana. . . £y
23.  The United States executed the;above-described seérch_ and seizure despite

the fact that there has never been a request informally, by summons or by subpoena for -

records as part of the civil case or the criminal investigation.




g P'.léii'ntif‘fj‘_t}‘i_gt __
1 storage devices
* under the aftorney-client and Wé_rk'—iafo{lgc"t:aoéfrines-"vf'e\lating to these two legal events, = i i

~- The seizure of these items and review by the FBI constitutes.a violation of the Fifth: . ox7» oo oo

~ Attorney-Client and. Work-Product Doctrines - - -

Amendment of the.U.S. Constitution. . .
 Interference with the Exercise of Free Speech

25 e NORFED 'W_és incb}pbfaféd as a;nc')n'-p‘roﬁt educational organizationfor . "

... the purpose-of political association.

26. " The First'Amendment to the US Constitution protects the practices ofa
political organization to promote its political beliefs.

27. = Plaintiff has the political goals of bﬁngiﬁg abqut the peaceful and lawful
repeal of the Federal Reserve Act and the intemal Revenue Code.

28. ° In'order 6 promote his political beliefs, Plaintiff engages in activities that
are legaily defined as “issue advocacy,” which is exempt from government regulation.

'29.  OnNovember 14, 2007, the goVernin’ent seized a vast amount of political

literature, flyers, 'bo‘okle.ts, memos, etc., which are used by the political organizationto - -

promote its political beliefs. Seizure!of all of the items constitutes interference withthe .. "
free exercise of political speech.

Un'law"ful Seizure

30. 'Thé seizure of the property included in Exhibit B, was carried-out

pursuant to a criminal search and seizure warrant. However, the government is

The US Mmtwarmng,postedon 1tswebs1te iﬁ‘2006, indiréétlyv 1nformed e

1zed duriﬁg,theigaid oﬁ_’thé'prérﬁiS'qsbbnsﬁtut’e privileged materials i it



« .. prohibited from eriminalizing the expression of disagreement with specific laws Of:our i i ie s i

*country: The conduct ofthe governiment in-this case is-substantially similar to condué’é C R A
-.that has‘;;b‘e:'e.h_ .dutl-a\}vedf-'by. fhe;.PriVacy*A‘ct;and%‘deemed‘ai‘l-nCohst-ifutional by the Supreme '« g
- Court on?nuiherousioécaSions.*- A

-3 1:7: - The Supreme Court has decreed:that “a.pointed expression of

.-anguish...about the.. .current domestic and foreign affairs of the government”is -

- rprotected by the First Amendment and cannot be criminally punished except in-the'most: - - v "=

compelling circumstances. No such circumstances are present in the instant case. "

30 Oﬁ. thev'faée‘of the warrant, Exhibit A, the United States asserts that-the -

- - warrant is conducted pursuanf to alleged violations of 18 U.S.C. §§ 1956, 1957v(“.Mo1;1ey1 L TR

Laundering”), 18 US.C. § 1341 .(“Mail Fraud”), and 18 U.S.C. § 1343 (“Wire Fraud”).

33. In the afﬁdévit, Exhibit D, as attached to the companion warrant from the
Western District of North Carolina, the United States‘ announces that it is investigating
Plaintiffs for allege'd. violations of 18 U.S.C. §§ 486, 489 (“Counterfeiting”). However,
these alleged Vidlations are not the basis for the search warrant and seiz’ui‘e. Pursuant to . .~
200 Atty. Gen. 210-(1891), the United States has acknowledged that it does not have -
authority to Seize property for alleged violations of 18 U.S.C. §§ 486, 489.

34. . The:warrant, Exhibit A, on its face, purports to be conducted pursuant to -
.18 U.S.C. § 982(a)(1) (“Criminal Forfeiture”), which-only:allows for forfeiture in'¢ases = -
- of conviction for violations of 1‘8 U.S.C. §§ 1956, 1957 (“Money Laundering™), 18 "

U.S.C. § 1341 (“Mail Fraud”), and 18 U.S.C. § 1343 (“Wire Fraud”).



‘Lack of Probable Cause: - .- ...~ ...~

-5+ “The allegations:in the affidavit, ExhibitD, do not constitute prima facia. . v, o ifzwii

18 U.S.C. §§ 1956, 1957 (“Money Laundering”), 18 U.S.C. § 1341 (“Mail Fraud™), and : .. .. ST

2018 U.8.Cx§.1343 (¢“Wire Fraud™). .-+ .. -

s .'allegations of probable.cause:to: sﬁppdﬁ.ja‘search-'and:se,izure for alleged violations-of .- it v o

+ 36,2 Pursuant to the plain:language of the.affidavit, Exhibit D, there wasno . ve i ¢ i

- Liberty Dollar medallions-or the Hawaii Dala medallions. The affidavit acknowledges

. quality-ofisilver: asi'represéntéd by Plaintiff and NORFED to customers. In:_addi_t-ion-; ther oo

* - affidavit indirectly acknowledges that Plaintiff and NORFED provided full disclosure to; .-

their customers and agents of how the face value of the medallion is calculated based
upon the spot price of silver, minting costs, and profit margins. Thus, because full -
disclosure is made to customers and agents before any sale occurs,‘ the allegation of the
United States that Mail Fraud or Wire Fraud has occurred is without merit.

37. - The affidavit, Exhibit D, provides no facts to support its claim that Money
Laﬁndering has been committed, which would support the search and seizure.

38. - " Neither Plaintiff, NORFED, nor any other representative or agent of the
Liberty Dollar.organization-have represented the Liberty Dollar medallions as legal-. - -~ ;.. -
tender, current money, or coin. Liberty Dollar has encouraged persons who utilize the
barter cﬁrrency to offer it to merchants as barter payment for goods and services but not -

as legal tender, current money, or coin. Thus, the use of the mail system or wire -

- that the FBI'meétallurgy lab has tested the medallions and they contain-the weight and: .+ - .bh - i 0

- “deception.on the part of Plaintiff or NORFEDin marketing and distributing either the.: ==« o bl



...communications system to market and distribute gold or silver Liberty “medallion” as-a

~“private:voluntary barter.cuirency’ cannot constitute Mail Fraud or Wire Fraud. oo uvn o o iy

++#39: -, <The Hawaii-Dala does notz»con't'ainfany markings or symbol, which-¢ould - -~ - e

suggest that it is a product of the U.S. Mint or other foreign government. A medallion

" representing a depiction from the Hawaii kingdom cannot fall under the' counterfeiting . -

... statues because:Hawaii does.not constitute a foreign government and such-depiction. ...~ -

© - cannot suggest that it is & product of the U.S. Mint.s¢ =+ .

© 40. The affidavit, Exhibit D, do€s not assert that the “fair market value™ of the - --

*minted-Liberty Dollar or Hawaii Dala valued in U.S. dollars, is less than the face amount

' ~on each%medailion...mthé.iafﬁdavit,~.Exhibit D; the United States 'arbitr'arily;és‘serts that o= o e

the face amount of each medallion is more than the spot. market price of the precious
metal contained in each coin. In valuing each medallion, the United States fails to take -
into account the premium that the market commands for production, minting, and -
overhead: costs to market a product for barter with silver and gold medallions. In
additiOn, in valuing each medallion, the United States fails to take into account the
numismatic collector value that the market commands for the minted Liberty Dollar - .-
medallions or Hawaii Dala medallions.

".-41.- . Because the allegations of fact contained in the affidavit, Exhibit D; do not . .
- - constitute a violation of 18:U:S.C..§§ 1956, 1957 (“Money Laundering™); 18U.S.C. - .. .. «.
§ 1341 (;“Mail‘ Fraud”), and 18 U.S.C. § 1343 (“Wire Fraud”), the United States did not - - .

. have probable cause to conduct the search and-seizure on November 14, 2007: . - -

10



-

.42, . Theaffidavit, Exhibit D, alleges that an unsuspecting individual may. - .. &b o

., unwittingly-aecept the Liberty Dollar medallion:or Hawaii Dala medallion:as.change; - . wsu s se ™

-+ believing that they.are receiving: .S, currency.. »wiebi 5 - 0 0 o L

: 43, . As a-comparison; the affidavit compares a'$20 Liberty Dollar medallion to- -+ s wii o

the 1946 Roosevelt Dime, 2007 U.S: Mint Platinum Eagle Coin, and the 2007 U.S. Mint - .. o007 L

"Presidential-Coinln wo e IV LT L o e S

w44 . The:2007-U.S. Mint Platinum Eagle Coin is not an exchangéd medium in - e b S

commerce, and, thus, there is'no realistic threat that an unsuspecting individual will- - -

- accept a Liberty:Dollar medallion in the place:of a:2007-U:S. Mint Platinum Eagle Coin..~ =i - 0 o

45 In addition; because thev$1v U.S. Sacagawea coin is the largest- . = w0 ol
denomination of coinage, which was an exchanged medium in commerce at the time of
the seizure, there is no realistic threat that a $20 Liberty Dollar will be inadvertently
received in place of a $20 U.S. currency piece.
~46. A $20 Liberty Dollar medallion is sufficiently discernable and different
from the 1946 Roosevelt Dime and the 2007 U.S. Mint Presidential Coin in size, color
and content to ensure that it will not be inadvertently received in their place. .

47.  The affidavit of the United States, Exhibit D, which was submitted to the

- Western District of North Carolina, Honorable Dennis L. Howell, United States . - .
* Magistrate Judge, Case No::1:07-mj-00119-DLH, in:order to obtain a warrant is -

' hlaterially and intentionally misleading. Assuming the affidavit in the case at hand is

substantially identical to the affidavit used in the companion case, then the affidavit in the

case at hand is equally misleading.

11



48.  In an attempt to show that the medallions at issue are “easily confused
with U.S. cutrency,” the United States, in the affidavit, Exhibit D, compares photocopied
images of a Liberty Dollar medallion to images of the 1946 Roosevelt Dime and the 2007
U.S. Mint Presidential Coin.

49.  The photocopy of the Liberty Dollar medallion is intentionally and
deceptively resized to match the size of the photocopies of the 1946 Roosevelt Dime and
the 2007 U.S. Mint Presidential Coin in order to mislead the Magistrate Judge into
believing that the medallion is similar in size and weight to the U.S. coins.

50.  Inreality, the Liberty Dollar is much larger in color, size and weight and
could not be easily confused with the 1946 Roosevelt Dime or the 2007 U.S. Mint
Presidential Coin.

51. A Judge, presented with an accurate desctiption of the color, size and
weight of the medallion in comparison to the 1946 Roosevelt Dime and the 2007 U.S.
Mint Presidential Coin, would not have agreed with the United States that the medallions
are “easily confused with U.S. currency” and the warrant, Exhibit A, would not have
been issued.

57 Without the misleading descriptions of the color, size and weight of the
medallion in comparison to the 1946 Rooseveit, Dime and the 2007 U.S. Mint
Presidential Coin, there is no probable cause for the issuance of the warrant, Exhibit A.

53. The m1slead1ng depictions in the affidavit, Exh1b1t D, of the color, size and
weight of the medallion in companson to the 1946 Roosevelt Dlme and the 2007 U.S.
Mint Presidential Coin violate the Fourth and Fourteenth Amendments to the

Constitution.

12



O S TN

¢

...Warrantis Overly=Broad ... = ",

- 54, TheWatrant is overbroad.because-it-fails:the particularity:requirement of 7iiwihn e
e the Fourthe Amen‘_dmeﬁté where it authorizes seizure:of “American Liberty: Dollar and/or-:voime. oo

.o .+ Hawaii Dala currency and or precious metals of gold, silver, copper; platinum, or other . - . .

. dangerous instrurhentality:: - .. -

w substance.and/or United States currency holdings”.-Such items are not contraband or .= ..+ zoi s v

"°55.7. : The:search and seizure on November 14, 2007 exceeded the scope of the 722 it oo

~warrant because the federal agents seized materials included on the United States’ - - - -~

.. seized by the federal-agents are notincluded in the-warrant.

Relief Sought
56.. Plaintiff seeks an immediate return of his property seized at the premises
and not included in the Civil Forfeiture action.

57. . In addition, Plaintiff seeks an Order requiring the United States to provide

 to Plaintiff a copy of the affidavit that was submitted by the United States to secure the

- warrant, Exhibit A, in the case at hand.

58.  Plaintiff seeks an Order requiring the United States to provide a more

- detailed inventory of the property seized at the premises.

Poyennoeo0 o o0 0 - Respectful

B?@iwmué, pr0>se
1614 Emerson Street, # 18

Honolulu. Hawaii. 96813

13

. “inventory; Exhibit B, which: are.not included on‘the-face-of the warrant: Other items ="+ - .- s



v}

«+ CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

- postageprespaid, on:this . 3o -9 th:day.of =

. Dater[=3070%.

~/Fheundersigned-hereby: certifies that:atrue.and correct copy of the foregoin"g hasioveie i o
been forwarded to all counsel of record by means of placmg a copy in the U.S: Mail, :-
Jans. ,2009; and addressed as:

follows:

.. Timothy:M. Morrison -

United States Attorney's Ofﬁce T O R

.o 10 W Market: St, Suite 2100 . - - . . 0L C S B Nenlem Loy
Indianapolis, IN 46204 e e

B TR RTC IS N R
CE e

Bémard von NetHaus, pro se

. -1614 Emerson Street; # 18 .
Honolulu. Hawaii. 96813
Phone: 314.872.3988
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